
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on 29 September 2022. 

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Companies 
Committee  

     
 

 

Friday, 7 October 2022 at 10.00 am 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House,  

St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Hannah Westropp (Chairman) 
Councillor John Dawson (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Harrish Bisnauthsing, Councillor Helen Crawford, Councillor Barry 
Dobson, Councillor Philip Knowles, Councillor Kaffy Rice-Oxley and Councillor Jill 
Thomas and Alliance SK Vacancy 
 

Agenda 
 

 This meeting can be watched as a live stream, or at a later date, via the  
SKDC YouTube Channel 

 

 

1.   Apologies for absence 
 

 

2.   Disclosure of interests 
 

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting 
 

 

3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 26 April 2022 
 

  (Pages 3 - 12) 

4.   Updates from the previous meeting 
 

To consider updates on Actions agreed at the previous meeting. 
 

  (Page 13) 

5.   Dissolution of InvestSK Ltd 
 

To update Companies Committee on progress in dissolving InvestSK Ltd 
and to provide a review of the company’s performance during the period of 
the final Business Plan from September 2020 to March 2022. 
 

(Pages 15 - 20) 

6.   Leisure SK Ltd Accounts and Financial Year 2022-23 
 

To present the financial accounts for LeisureSK Ltd up to 31 March 2021. 

(Pages 21 - 34) 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
https://www.youtube.com/user/SouthKestevenDC


 

 Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 

Under Section 100(a)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public may be excluded from the meeting during any listed items of 
business, on the grounds that if they were to be present, exempt 
information could be disclosed to them as defined in paragraph 3 of 
Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 

 

7.   East Midlands Building Consultancy Update 
 

The purpose of this report is to support the Companies Committee in 
keeping an oversight of the highly successful building control service for 
South Kesteven District Council, Rushcliffe Borough Council and Newark 
and Sherwood District Council. 
 

(Pages 35 - 67) 

8.   Environment SK Ltd - Finance Update including Financial Statements 
2021-22 
 

This report presents a financial update for the Council owned company 
Environment SK Ltd and includes the 2021/22 final statements.   
 

(Pages 69 - 88) 

9.   Work Programme 2022 - 2023 
 

   (Page 89) 

10.   Any other business which the Chairman, by reasons of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent 
 

 



 

Meeting of the 
Companies Committee 
 
Tuesday, 26 April 2022, 2.00 pm 

  
 

 

Committee Members present 
 
Councillor Graham Jeal (Chairman) 
Councillor John Dawson (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Ashley Baxter 
Councillor John Dawson (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Graham Jeal (Chairman) 
Councillor Philip Knowles 
Councillor Kaffy Rice-Oxley 
Councillor Susan Sandall 
Councillor Jill Thomas 
 
Cabinet Members/SK Company Directors 
 
Councillor Kelham Cooke, Leader of the Council  
(Director of Gravitas Housing Ltd and LeisureSK Ltd) 
Councillor Adam Stokes, Deputy Leader of the Council  
(Director of EnvironmentSK Ltd and LeisureSK Ltd) 
Councillor Barry Dobson, Cabinet Member for Leisure  
(Director of LeisureSK Ltd) 
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew, Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor 
Economy (Director of LeisureSK Ltd) 
 
Officers  
 
Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer (Director of Gravitas Housing Ltd) 
Karen Whitfield, Assistant Director of Culture and Leisure  
Emma Whittaker, Assistant Director of Planning 
Anne-Marie Coulthard, Assistant Director of Operations and Public Protection  
Lucy Bonshor, Democratic Officer 
 
 

 
43. Membership and apologies for absence 

 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Mark Whittington. 
 
Councillor Nick Robins, the Cabinet Member for Planning and Planning Policy also 
sent an apology. 

 
44. Disclosure of interests 

 
None disclosed. 

3

Agenda Item 3



 

 
45. Minutes of the meeting held on 25 January 2022 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 25 January 2021 were proposed, seconded 
and AGREED. 

 
46. Updates from the previous meeting 

 
A question was asked about whether the list of Directors of South Kesteven District 
Council companies had been circulated.  The list would be re-circulated to 
Members. 
 
➢ Action 
 
That a list of Directors of South Kesteven District Council companies be 
circulated again to Committee Members. 

 
47. East Midlands Building Consultancy 2021/22 Update 

 
The Assistant Director of Planning presented the report which provided an overview 
of the performance of the East Midlands Building Consultancy (EMBC) partnership 
during 2021/22. 
 
The EMBC is a partnership between South Kesteven District Council (SKDC), 
Rushcliffe Borough Council and Newark and Sherwood District Council.  The 
partnership is based on a shared service agreement with SKDC delivering the 
EMBC service on behalf of each partner. 
 
Building Control was a statutory service and the functions within it are categorised 
as either “fee or non-fee earning”.  The split between the two categories was 74% 
fee earning and 26% non-fee earning.  The fee earning was on a cost recovery 
basis only. 
 
Appendix 1 listed the work covered by the fee and non-fee earning services.  EMBC 
had maintained an average market share of 49% in 2021/22.  The pandemic had 
slowed the construction market and some staff had been furloughed for a short 
period under the Job retention Scheme.  However, during 2021/22 applications had 
been higher than before the pandemic and this was highlighted within the tables 
contained within the report. 
 
Appendix 2 contained exempt information and gave the year end position of EMBC 
which had been summarised within the public report. 

 
The recommendation contained within the report asked the Committee to note the 
performance of the EMBC over the last 12 months and to make any 
recommendations to support the ongoing success of the partnership.  That the 
Committee agreed to receive an updated Business Plan in six months and that the 
Committee agreed to receive a performance report of the EMBC every six months. 
 
The following questions comments were made: 

 

4



 

• Who was leading the development of the EMBC and who was working on the 
deliverables?   

 
It was noted that since the restructure the service came under a new Directorate, 
currently there was not a Manager in post but two existing Officers were acting up 
and recruitment of a new Manager was currently on going.  A new Business Plan 
would be developed once the new Manager was in post as they would have an 
input in to the development of the service.   
 

• The Business Plan should come before the Committee within the next six 
month period. 

 

• Was anything being done in widening the partnership to include neighbouring 
authorities.   

 
There were opportunities to widen the partnership and these would be explored as 
part of the Business Plan and aspirations for the service.    
 

• Would the EMBC be on the Partnership Risk Register 
 
It was confirmed that a health check would be carried out as part of the new 
Partnership Governance Policy. 

 

• Comments on the layout of information being consistent. 
 

It was acknowledged that a manager was not currently in post, but it was felt that 
the Business Plan should come before the Committee as soon as possible.  The 
margins currently remained low and the Chairman wanted to know the reasons for 
this and what the business development strategy for the business was going 
forward.  He felt that the Business Plan should come before the Committee within 
the next three months, subject to a manager being in post. 
 
A proposal was put forward to accept the recommendations contained within the 
report which was seconded.  On being put to the vote the proposal was LOST. 
 
It was felt that more detail was required by the Committee and the Business Plan 
should come back to the Committee within three months subject to a manager 
being in post. 

 
Further discussion followed on the recommendations and the work that had been 
done by Officers in relation to the report before the Committee. 
 
An amendment was proposed to accept the recommendations contained in the 
report with the inclusion of the word within before six months.  The amendment was 
seconded and on being put to the vote AGREED. 
 
Decision 
 
That the Companies Committee: 

 

5



 

1. Notes the performance of the East Midlands Building Consultancy over 
the last 12 months and supports the ongoing success of the partnership.  

2. Agrees to receive an updated Business Plan within the next six months.  

3. Agrees to receive a report every six months on the performance of the 
EMBC Partnership. 

 
48. Gravitas Housing Limited Housing update 

 
A director of Gravitas Housing Ltd presented the report which concerned an update 
on the Wherry’s Lane development in Bourne.   
 
The Committee had received a written report in November 2021 and a verbal 
update was given at the Committee on 25 January 2022 where a request was made 
for a further written report. 
 
It was noted that the project was nearing completion and no marketing was 
currently necessary.  All the houses and apartments had either a reservation price 
on them or were going through the legal process and it was anticipated that all sale 
receipts would be completed by mid to late May 2022.  The Business Plan for 
Gravitas Housing Ltd agreed by Council in 2017 would then be complete. 
 
Reference was made to Table 1.7 within the report which detailed the interaction 
between the Company and the Council and where the financial gains had been to 
the Council.  The project had not just been about the housing development but how 
the Company could support the Council financially.  The Director then highlighted 
areas within the table such as the Section 106 Agreement (£504,000) which had 
been agreed when the planning application for the 25 units went to the Planning 
Committee.  Up to 60% of the funding had been used for social housing in the 
vicinity of the Wherry’s Lane development known as Meadow Close. Photographs 
of the development were appended to the report.  Residual funding left from the 
106 funding would be used in other locations. 
 
Details of the interest charged between the Council and the Company were 
highlighted and was based on the financial structure of equity, where the Council 
invested in shares in the Company of 40%.  The remaining 60% was a loan from 
the Council.  Interest to date on the loan was £174,000. There had also been a 
recharge to the Company in respect of the time South Kesteven District Council 
Officers spent in relation to work on Gravitas Housing Ltd, this was on a part-time 
basis and the Council had received income of £107,000. 

 
Council tax would be paid by all 25 properties either by Gravitas Housing Ltd itself 
whilst it held the assets or by the owners once the units were sold. To date income 
from Council tax was £6,000 which represented 9% of the Council tax bill for those 
properties that had become liable for Council Tax since 2020.  
 
Over the life of the new development, the New Homes Bonus income from the 
creation of new dwellings following the Governments formula calculation was 
£188,000.    

 

6



 

To date nearly £1m had been received either directly or indirectly to the Council 
from the development.    The Council’s equity share in the Company is £1.1m.   
 
A full closure report on the project would be presented to the Companies 
Committee following the completion of all sales and the payment of any residual 
costs relating to the scheme.  The report would detail what had been achieved from 
the project and any lessons learnt. 
 
Members discussed the report before them and the following comments/questions 
were made: 
 

• If the actual costs and challenges were known at the beginning, would the 
project have gone ahead. 

 
It was stated that there had not been enough profit in the scheme for the private 
sector to bring the project forward and Gravitas Housing Ltd had intervened as the 
site was falling into misuse. It was acknowledged that there had been problems with 
the site in terms of clearance and works required once construction had started.  
Due to the fine profit margins, unforeseen costs had been incurred by the 
contingency element of Gravitas Housing Ltd 
 

• Members were glad to see the progress in relation to sales of the townhouses. 

• One Member commented that the site had been part of a huge development 
for Bourne which had not materialised.  The profit received was below that 
originally forecast.  The cash flow was negative due to the delay in building 
the houses, and the usage was only 75% of the original plan proposed for 
2017/2021.  It was stated that the information would be contained within the 
closure report. 
 

Questions were asked in relation to the sale value of the townhouses and 
confirmation in respect of the buyers.  It was stated that deposits had been received 
for the properties and more information would be contained in the closure report. 
 
The Committee NOTED the updated report on the Wherry’s Lane Bourne 
Development. 

 
49. LeisureSK Limited Business Plan 

 
The Committee received a report on the updated Business Plan for LeisureSK Ltd 
for the period 2022/23.  Trading conditions for the Company remained challenging 
with the recovery from Covid and rising utility costs.  A successful application to the 
National Leisure Recovery Fund, administered by Sport England on behalf of the 
Department of Culture, Media and Sports had been received in the sum of 
£327,597. 
 
The Board of Directors were focused on the strategic direction of the Company, that 
it performed to expectations and delivered results to the Council and residents of 
the District. 
 
The final years’ accounts and cash balances would be shared with the Companies 
Committee at a future meeting following the close down of accounts at the end of 

7



 

the financial year 2021/22.  A trading position for the period January 2021 to 
December 2021 had been provided in exempt Appendix 4. 

 
A five year forecast for the Company was reviewed by Sport and Leisure 
Consultancy and this was also appended to the report within exempt Appendix 4.  
This would be kept under review due to the ongoing issues with the rise in utility 
costs and the date for the reopening of the Deepings Leisure Centre. 
 
The report recommended that the Committee approved the Business Plan for 
LeisureSK Ltd to cover the period April 2022 to March 2023 and considered the 
performance of LeisureSK Ltd against the Business Plan and identified any 
additional considerations to be addressed in the future six-monthly updates to the 
Committee. 
 
Members discussed the report before them and the following reports/comments 
were made. 

 

• The report was comprehensive, but more specific targets should be included 
within the plan that could be measured rather than the general targets 
included. 

• Why was Bourne Leisure Centre not included within the Risk Register, the 
building was old and there were elements of risk in respect of the ownership 
(Lincolnshire County Council owned the building) and other factors associated 
with old buildings.  Also, the school had priority over the use of the building 
during the week. 

• Reference was made to chlorine and it was stated that these questions should 
be taken outside of the Committee. 
 

It was stated that a full condition survey had been carried out in respect of all three 
leisure centres. Once the result was known, work would be prioritised and risks 
added to the Risk Register accordingly.  It was acknowledged that the Bourne 
Leisure Centre building should be included on the register due to its age.   It was 
noted that Bourne school only used the sports hall during the week, the remainder 
of the Leisure Centre was open to the wider community. 
 
Further comments were made in respect of having to book facilities in advance and 
the impact that this would have on numbers, when would this be lifted.   Also, it was 
felt that on page 3 (page 44 of the agenda pack) paragraph 3, wording should be 
included after meaningful consultation “subject to affordability”. 
 
Facilities were booked in advance so that numbers could be monitored, the 
Directors were keen to lift the requirement as soon as it was safe to do so, a Board 
meeting was due to be held that week with the Directors and this would be added.  
The Leader of the Council agreed with the comments made that a final decision 
was to be subject to affordability to be added to the document. 
 
The Chairman stated that it was a well written Business Plan and that it gave 
confidence in the management of the Company.  It was noted that not enough 
focus was given to the other three leisure centres which had been repurposed, 
transformed and had implemented new ways of working seamlessly, the focus was 
mainly on the Deepings Leisure Centre.    

8



 

 
Tribute was paid to the Assistant Director of Leisure and the Team that worked at 
LeisureSK Ltd for the work that had been done at all three Leisure Centres during 
such times and in a challenging environment. 
 
The following comments/questions were made: 
 

• Points within the documents in respect of comments made by consultants 

• How it could be demonstrated that the four outcomes could be met 

• Where had the national figures quoted in the report originated 

• It was noted that the majority of the Board of Directors for LeisureSK Ltd were 
Members 

• HR Strategy who was leading on it and that no formal pay structure was a 
legacy from 1Life 

• What was the methodology behind the pricing structure, was it benchmarked 
regionally?  Was it profit based or percentage profit based? 

 
The Assistant Director of Leisure addressed the comments/questions made.  
 

• Consultants had been used for the five year forecast and the figures were also 
tied into national benchmarking systems.  Surety was needed for the next year 
although it was acknowledged that it got more difficult to predict from year two 
onward.   

• It was for the Committee to measure the outcomes of the Business Plan.  Key 
areas could be focused on in the report brought to Committee every six 
months.  Key Performance Indicators could be developed in relation to the 
Business performance. 

• Due to the successful application to the National Leisure Recovery Fund, 
LeisureSK Ltd was tied into the Moving Communities Platform which was 
where the recovery information came from. 

• The HR Strategy was a function of the Board.  The pay structure was a legacy 
of 1Life. 

• In respect of pricing – fees and charges were set by the Council which gave 
LeisureSK Ltd a parameter.  Membership pricing was set by LeisureSK Ltd by 
the Board of Directors and was in relation to local competition.  The budget 
figure for LeisureSK Ltd was agreed by the Council on an annual basis. 
 

Further questions were asked in relation to supply issues and also the repairs 
review backlog to which the Leader of the Council and the Assistant Director of 
Leisure replied. 

 
 

50. Work Programme 2021 - 2022 
 
It was stated that EnvironmentSK Ltd should be on a six month cycle on the Work 
Programme together with the Business Plan for East Midlands Building Control 
Partnership.  The Chairman stated that all the Council Companies should be 
included on the Work Programme, although they would not have allocated dates as 
these had yet to be confirmed. 

 

9



 

➢ Action 
 
That all the Council Companies including EnvironmentSK Ltd and East 
Midlands Building Control Partnership to be included on the Work 
Programme on a six monthly cycle. 
 

51. Exclusion of Press and Public 
 

In accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended) the press and public were excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of LeisureSK Ltd Business Plan, Appendix 4 because of the likelihood 
that otherwise exempt information as described in paragraph 3 of the Act would be 
disclosed to them. 
 
(14:56 the meeting went into closed session) 

 
52. Exempt Appendix 4 - LeisureSK Limited Business Plan 

 
The Committee discussed exempt Appendix 4, see exempt minute. 
 
Decision 
 
That the Companies Committee: 
 
1. Approves the Business Plan for LeisureSK Ltd to cover the period April 

2022 to March 2023 subject to additional figures and greater detail being 
included. 

 
2. Notes the performance of LeisureSK Ltd against the Business Plan but 

requests that additional figures and greater detail and explanations are 
addressed in the Business Plan and in the future six monthly update to 
the Committee. 
 

 
53. Any other business which the Chairman, by reasons of special 

circumstances, decides is urgent 
 

None. 
 

54. Close of meeting 
 

The meeting closed at 15:31. 
 
 

10



Document is Restricted

11

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Action Sheet 

To provide members with an update on actions agreed at the 26 April 2022 meeting of the Companies Committee. 
 

min 
no 

Agenda item Action(s) Assigned to Comments/Status Deadline 

50 Work 
Programme 
2022-2023 

That all the Council 
companies including 
EnvironmentSK Ltd and 
East Midlands Building 
Control Partnership are to 
be included on the Work 
Programme on a six 
monthly cycle. 

Democratic 
Services Officer 

 Added to the Work Programme  
 
 

COMPLETE 

 

13

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

       

Companies 
Committee 
 
 

7 October 2022 
 
Report of Councillor Kelham Cooke, 
Chairman of InvestSK Limited 
 
 

 

 

Dissolution of InvestSK Limited 
 

Report Author 

Jon Hinde, Head of Economic Development 

 jon.hinde@investsk.co.uk 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

To update Companies Committee on progress in dissolving InvestSK Ltd and to provide a 

review of the company’s performance during the period of the final Business Plan from 

September 2020 to March 2022. 

 

 

Recommendations 

 

That in noting the successful transfer of all InvestSK Limited staff into the Council’s 
Growth and Culture Directorate and progress made in dissolving the company, 
Companies Committee: 

1. Celebrates achievements made during the Business Plan period of September 2020 
to March 2022. 

2. Recommends to Cabinet the effectiveness of business support continues to be 
monitored and Officers continue to seek feedback from South Kesteven small and 
medium sized enterprises (SMEs) to ensure Council services continually improve in 
line with their needs.  

 

  

15

Agenda Item 5

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No  

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

Growth and our economy 

 

Which wards are impacted? All  

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, staffing, 

community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s declaration 

of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 The inclusion of resources to fund the formation of InvestSK Ltd was approved by 

the Council 23 November 2017 and financial resources have been included in 

subsequent annual budgets up to 31 March 2022.  Thereafter the funding to support 

economic development has been incorporated into service costs.  This report sets 

out the outcomes achieved in response to the funding made available.  Richard 

Wyles, Chief Finance Officer  

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 As soon as confirmation is received for formal sign off of the final audited accounts, 

the necessary application for submission to Companies House for strike off can be 

submitted. 

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1  The three-year Corporate Plan (2020-2023), sets out a vision to be the best district 

in which to live, work and visit. The Plan sets out how the Council will promote the 

conditions that will help businesses thrive and proposer. Investment in housing, 

town centre regeneration, building on and celebrating the rich heritage and culture, 

alongside employment and skills support, all contribute to creating a thriving working 

environment. The Council considers such interventions as essential for good growth 

and a vibrant local economy.  

 

2.2 As reported to this Committee on 25 January 2022, in November 2021 the Board of 

InvestSK Limited undertook a thorough and detailed review into the business 

16



operating model of the company and whether the function would be better delivered 

in-house. 

 

2.3 The outcome of the review was to insource InvestSK Limited and Transfer of 

Undertaking (Protection of Employment) (TUPE) of staff to South Kesteven District 

Council as part of the Growth and Culture Directorate. Some of the advantages of 

insourcing identified through the review were:  

 

a) The roles and responsibilities would embed alongside Planning and Leisure & 

Cultural Services, under the leadership of the Director of Growth and Culture. 

b) Terms and Conditions for staff would improve to aid morale and retention. 

c) Potential to explore closer working with Council teams, as well as for 

partnerships with neighbouring local authorities to deliver efficiencies.  

 

2.4 Companies Committee subsequently endorsed the recommendation that InvestSK 

Limited as a company should be dissolved, the activity transferred to the Council 

and retention of the successful InvestSK brand. 

 

2.5 Immediately following this endorsement, work commenced to implement closure 

of the business and transfer all InvestSK Limited staff into the Council’s Growth 

and Culture Directorate. 

 

2.6 The transfer of all five members of staff (three x full-time equivalent (FTE) and two 

x FTE fixed term) was completed on 31 March 2022. As of 1 April 2022, all staff 

formerly employed by InvestSK Limited became employees of South Kesteven 

District Council. 

 

2.7 The process for dissolving the business has a specific process the Council was 

obliged to follow to ‘strike off’ the company. The first aspect to highlight, is that 

prior to commencing the closure of the company, the company must be in a 

position of not trading for a period of three months. Until this immoveable timescale 

passed the application process was unable to commence, nor the transferring of 

business assets and approval of the final accounts.  

 

2.8 The final accounts have since been audited and a meeting with the InvestSK 

Limited Board took place on 18 August 2022. The draft accounts were approved 

and are currently being processed for formal sign off.  

 

2.9 Once all these elements have been undertaken, it will be ensured that the       

necessary statutory obligations and processes are followed to close or ‘strike off’ 

the company. In the meantime, shareholders, employees and Directors have been 

informed of the decision to close the company and His Majesty's Revenue and 

Customs (HMRC) have been informed. 

 

2.10 By way of a reminder, the Companies Committee paper in January 2022 provided 

detail on: the structure and financial statements for InvestSK Limited from its 

17



original development in October 2017, its formation as an arms-length company 

of the Council in 2018, the subsequent restructuring of the business, through to its 

final operating model as endorsed by Companies Committee in September 2020. 

 

2.11 The Business Plan approved in September 2020 highlighted several 

achievements of InvestSK Limited since its inception and the need to streamline 

the operation going forward to present a sharper focus on activity aligned to the 

key identified themes of: 

 

• Business Support 

• Regeneration and Placemaking 

• Tourism and the Visitor Economy 

 

2.12 The much-revised staffing structure reflected these three key priorities. After 

successfully securing £5.56m of Future High Streets Funding (FHSF) in April 2021, 

a Programme Manager was recruited to oversee this activity.  

 

2.13 This staffing structure remained in place with greater emphasis placed upon 

accessing core Council services, such as Information Technology (IT), Finance, 

Human Resources (HR) and Marketing and Communications. 

 

2.14 Members of Companies Committee were provided with a full written breakdown of 

the InvestSK Limited accounts 2018-2019 and 2019-2020 on 18 January 2022.  

This report therefore concentrates on the several notable achievements delivered 

by InvestSK Limited during the period of the approved Business Plan (from 

September 2020 through to March 2022) which is reflective of the hard work and 

commitment of the small, yet dedicated, team.  

 

Business Support and Skills:  

 

• Over £53m of Government COVID support grants administered to South 

Kesteven businesses 

• The design and delivery of several discretionary schemes to support 

businesses ineligible for mainstream support 

• Development of a strong working relationship with colleagues in the Council’s 

Finance and Revenues & Benefits teams, to effectively administer the COVID 

grants programme 

• At the height of the pandemic, the team dealt with an average of 200 calls and 

400 emails per week 

• Provided dedicated (non grant) support to 90 local businesses, including 22 

new business start ups 

• Delivered virtual monthly business support briefings (InvestSK Tea Break) to 

on average 80 local businesses per month 

• Supported the successful outline planning application for 64 acres of 

employment land on the A1 corridor 

18



• Provided regional business start-up provider, with the highest number of 

Business Start Up referrals in Lincolnshire 

• Supported the formation of a Stamford Business Club 

• Grew a business database from circa 400 to 1,200 businesses, with 1,787 

contacts in total 

 

 

Regeneration and Placemaking: 

 

• Successfully secured £5.56m for the Grantham Future High Streets Fund 

(FHSF) programme 

• Commenced delivery phase of the FHSF programme and identified key 

external stakeholders required to support delivery 

• Successful first year of delivery of the £900k Grantham High Street Heritage 

Action Zone (HAZ) programme, with £170k spent and a further £120k of 

pipeline activity confirmed 

• Secured a further £90k for additional cultural activities 

• Worked with Historic England on local projects to address national 

underspends 

• £68,300 of funding secured from National Lottery Heritage Fund and 

Lincolnshire Community Foundation for Wake House in Bourne and Deeping 

St James Signal box project 

• Led on delivery of several projects for the £250k Government Welcome Back 

Fund 

 

Visitor Economy and Tourism: 

 

• Dedicated Discover South Kesteven website showcasing local attractions and 

accommodation providers https://www.discoversouthkesteven.com/ 

• Continued to support and promote the ‘A1 Explorers Road’ initiative 

https://www.discoversouthkesteven.com/explorers-road/ 

• Supported the tourism and visitor economy sector throughout the pandemic 

with information sessions and discretionary grant support  

• Active engagement in the Visit Lincolnshire campaign 

https://www.visitlincolnshire.com/destinations/south-countryside/ 

 

2.15 Following the successful TUPE transfer of all InvestSK Limited staff, the company 

Business Plan was replaced by the necessary Council Service Plan, which was 

subsequently approved by the Corporate Management Team. 

 

3. Key Considerations 

 

3.1 A key consideration for Companies Committee is to consider recommending to 

Cabinet the effectiveness of business support continues to be monitored and for 

19

https://www.discoversouthkesteven.com/
https://www.discoversouthkesteven.com/explorers-road/
https://www.visitlincolnshire.com/destinations/south-countryside/


Officers to continue to seek feedback from South Kesteven small and medium 

sized enterprises (SMEs) to ensure Council services continually improve in line 

with their needs. 

 

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 Since the outbreak of COVID-19, South Kesteven District Council has worked 

 tirelessly to keep services running during the crisis and supporting residents and 

 businesses.  It is important that elected Members receive an overview of the SME 

 business support being undertaken during this difficult time. The ‘do nothing’ 

 option was therefore discounted.  

 

5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 At Companies Committee on 25 January 2022, elected Members agreed that 

 InvestSK Limited as a company is dissolved and the activity transferred to the 

 Council’s Growth and Culture Directorate for implementation at the earliest 

 opportunity. This report highlights areas for celebration and creates the moment 

 for elected Members to suggest to Cabinet that updates on contemporary 

 information in relation to support and availability of funding for SMEs continues to 

 be monitored.  

 

 

6. Background Papers 
 

6.1 Future ways of working for InvestSK Limited, report to Companies Committee, 

 published 25 January 2022, available online via:  

 

https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s32240/Future%20Way

s%20of%20Working%20for%20InvestSK%20Ltd.pdf 

 

 

 

 

 

20

https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s32240/Future%20Ways%20of%20Working%20for%20InvestSK%20Ltd.pdf
https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s32240/Future%20Ways%20of%20Working%20for%20InvestSK%20Ltd.pdf


 
 

       

Companies 
Committee 
 
 

7 October 2022 
 
Report of Councillor Adam Stokes, 
Chairman of LeisureSK Ltd 
 
 

 

 

LeisureSK Ltd Accounts 2020/2021 
 

Report Author 

Nicola McCoy-Brown, Director of LeisureSK Ltd  

 nicola.mccoy-brown@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

To present the financial accounts for LeisureSK Ltd up to 31 March 2021. 

 

 

Recommendations 

In noting the 2020/2021 accounts have been filed at Companies House for 
LeisureSK Ltd, it is recommended Members:  

 

1. Agree to receive accounts for the period April 2021 to March 2022 at the 
November 2022 Companies Committee meeting.  

 

  

21

Agenda Item 6

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No 

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities 

Healthy and strong communities 

 

Which wards are impacted? Two or more Wards 

 

1. Background to the Report 
 

1.1  The Council’s Corporate Plan 2020 – 2023 identifies the provision of leisure 

opportunities across the district to be a key priority and a contributory factor to 

ensuring that South Kesteven continues to be the best district in which to live, work 

and visit. 

 

1.2 LeisureSK Ltd is a not-for-profit Teckal company and is wholly owned by the 

Council.  Formed in September 2020, it was established to manage the Council’s 

leisure facilities, the associated management contract between the Council and 

LeisureSK Ltd commenced on 1 January 2021. 

 

1.3 As a Council owned company it is vital that, as well as supporting the Council’s key 

priority of building healthy and strong communities, LeisureSK Ltd also deliver on 

the priority of being a high performing Council, managing finance and assets 

effectively, and identifying savings and efficiencies. 

 

 Financial Accounts 2020/21 

 

1.4 The initial year of trading for LeisureSK Ltd was originally extended to cover a 

fifteen-month period to the end of March 2022.  This enabled the assessment of any 

management fee required to be considered as part of the Council’s annual budget 

setting process. 

 

1.5 Following the end of the financial year 2020/21, the Council commissioned Burgin 

& Co of Grantham, a practising member firm of the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants, to prepare the company accounts for LeisureSK Ltd to March 2021. 

 

1.6 Provided at Appendix One are the accounts for LeisureSK Ltd to cover the period 

September 2020 to March 2021.  These were signed off by Councillor Adam Stokes 

at a meeting of the Board of Directors held on 31 May 2022 and have already been 

filed at Companies House. This action was necessary, as the timeline for 

submission of a company’s first accounts must be 21 months from when the 

company was formed, rather than when it became operational.   

 

22



 1.7 For this period, September 2020 to March 2021, the company showed a loss of 

£40,086.  During this time, opportunities to attract income were limited due to the 

enforced closure of facilities as part of the Government’s response to the COVID-

19 pandemic. For the period September to December 2020, the leisure centres 

remained under the management of the previous contractor, 1Life Management 

Solutions.     

 

1.8 During the period of enforced closure, the LeisureSK Board of Directors ensured 

that the majority of the operational staff were furloughed. The staff remaining on full 

employment and pay were kept to a minimum, being responsible for undertaking 

health and safety checks on the leisure facilities and keeping the plant and 

equipment running. 

 

1.9 Whilst the leisure centres remained closed, LeisureSK Ltd did receive a small 

amount of income from hiring out to the National Health Service Lincolnshire Clinical 

Commissioning Group (NHS CCG), the Table Tennis Centre at Grantham Meres 

Leisure Centre as the main local vaccination centre. This arrangement remains in 

place today and, in addition to receiving a hire fee, any additional staff costs or loss 

of income are recharged to the NHS. 

 

 Financial Accounts 2021/2022 

 

1.10 The accounts to March 2022 are in the process of being audited. It is recommended 

these accounts are presented to 15 November 2022 meeting of Companies 

Committee.  

  

2. Key Considerations 

 
2.1 The Business Plan, including financial monitoring of performance, is kept under 

review by the Board of Directors who receive monthly financial and contract 

updates. Until the work has been completed to reprofile the anticipated performance 

of LeisureSK Ltd, it is not possible to say whether any further financial support will 

be required from the Council in the current financial year. 

 

2.2 Should it not be possible to meet the increased costs, it will be the responsibility of 

the Board of Directors to formally write to the Council to request additional funding.  

Should this be necessary, a report will be presented to Companies Committee for 

consideration. 

 

3. Other Options Considered 
 

3.1 As a private limited company, LeisureSK Ltd is obligated to compile financial 

accounts on an annual basis and file these with Companies House. 

 

23



3.2 The Council and the Board of Directors for LeisureSK Ltd have a duty to ensure the 

leisure centres are operated in accordance with the Council’s commitment to reduce 

carbon emissions, to seek efficiencies and limit the Council’s financial exposure. 

  

4. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

4.1 It is the role of Companies Committee to have oversight of Council-owned 

companies to ensure alignment with the Council’s over-arching strategy, and to 

receive reports to evaluate performance, including financial performance against 

the Business Plan. 

  

5. Background Papers 
 

5.1 LeisureSK Ltd Business Plan 2022/23 - Report and associated appendices to 

Companies Committee, published on 26 April 2022, available online via: LeisureSK 

Ltd Business Plan.pdf (southkesteven.gov.uk) 

 

6. Appendices 
 

6.1 Appendix One – Published Accounts for LeisureSK Ltd for the period September 

2020 to March 2021. 

 

24

https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s34031/LeisureSK%20Ltd%20Business%20Plan.pdf
https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s34031/LeisureSK%20Ltd%20Business%20Plan.pdf


25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



 
 

       

Companies 
Committee 
 
 

7 October 2022 
 
Report of Councillor Nick Robins  
Cabinet Member for Planning and 
Planning Policy 
 
 

 

 

East Midlands Building Consultancy 
 

Report Author 

Emma Whittaker, Assistant Director of Planning 

  Emma.whittaker@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

The purpose of this report is to support the Companies Committee in keeping an oversight 

of the highly successful building control service for South Kesteven District Council, 

Rushcliffe Borough Council and Newark and Sherwood District Council. 

 

 

Recommendations 

 

That in noting the Quarter 1 performance and the draft business plan, Companies 
Committee: 

1. Consider whether there are any actions required in relation to the detail 
contained within this report for consideration by the East Midlands Building 
Consultancy Board. 

 

 

 

 

 

35

Agenda Item 7

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

Yes – Appendix 1 of this report is exempt under 
paragraph 3, Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 (as amended) because it 
contains information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of an individual or organisation. 

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

• Growth and our economy 

• Housing that meets the needs of all residents 

• Healthy and strong communities 

• Clean and sustainable environment 

• High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All  

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 Consult with Richard Wyles or Alison Hall-Wright (Do not delete) 

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report, however in governance 

terms, members of this committee are tasked with looking at the business plan and 

model and are able to make any recommendations to the partnership and to Cabinet 

as need be. 

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1  As outlined in the Corporate Plan 2020-2023, the culture of collaborative and 

collegiate working developed locally is of importance to South Kesteven District 

Council.  Especially as an active, influential and productive partner across the 

various partnership landscape to empower local communities and deliver best 

value public services.  

 

2.2 This report should be viewed as taking reasonable steps to improve efficacy and 

visibility of the work of the East Midlands Building Consultancy (EMBC) which the 

Council currently collaborates with Rushcliffe Borough Council (RBC) and Newark 

and Sherwood District Council (N&SDC) on.  

36



 

2.3 Building Control is a statutory service provided by a local authority.  Building 

Regulations set the minimum standards for design, construction and alterations to 

virtually every building.  Building regulation approvals can be sought from the 

Council’s building control service or from an Approved Inspector (AI). In that regard 

the Council competes with AI’s for a share of the market. 

 

2.4 This committee last received a report on EMBC at its 23 February 2021 meeting. 

By way of a reminder, the original partnership objectives were to combine 

resources to improve resilience, depth of expertise, staff retention and to improve 

service performance in this highly regulated area of work.  The partnership was 

originally set up in 2014 between SKDC and RBC, with N&SDC joining the 

partnership in 2015/2016. 

 

2.5 The partnership is based on a shared service agreement, with South Kesteven 

District Council delivering the EMBC service on behalf of each partner. Each 

council shares any financial surplus or deficit equally, operating financially under 

one single trading account.  A Partnership Board comprising of senior officers from 

each partner authority has primary responsibility for overseeing the operational 

management and delivery of the joint building control partnership. 

2.6 The services provided by any Local Authority Building Control service are split 

between “fee earning” and “non-fee earning”.  The fee earning aspect relates to 

applications made to the Council for it to assess if the development meets the 

Building Regulations.  The Council is in direct competition with AI’s for this element 

of the workload.   

2.7 Non-fee earning work covers those aspects of the service that the Council is 

statutorily obliged to provide and includes maintaining a register of all building 

control approvals awarded in its area (whether issued by EMBC or by an AI), 

providing general advice to the public and undertaking work associated with 

dangerous structures.  

2.8 The workload split between fee earning and non-fee earning activity is 74/26 and 

is typical of a local authority building control service.  The non-fee earning work is 

a cost that must be borne by the Council and is charged to the general fund. 

2.9  Whilst fee earning work is paid for by the customer, the Council is still required to 

have regard to the overriding objective of ensuring that as far as possible, charges 

are set at a level which equate to the cost of providing the service.  This means 

the Council is not permitted to make a profit from the charges and cannot subsidise 

the statutory services from fee income.  

 

Performance 

2.10 Table 1 provides the provisional outturn summary for EMBC for 2021/22 (subject 

to final year-end adjustments). The partnership has made a provisional trading 

account surplus of £54,261 on the fee earning work which is split equally between 

37



the three partners. However, the non-fee earning work results in a general fund 

charge of £73,637 to each of the three partners.    

 

Table 1. Fee Earning and Non-Fee Earning (Provisional) Outturn 2021/22 

  Provisional Outturn Budget 

2021/22 
 Fee 

Earning  
 Non-Fee 
Earning   Total  

 Fee 
Earning  

 Non-Fee 
Earning   Total  

 £ £ £ £ £ £ 

Total Income 690,145 23,150 713,295 650,000 21,500 671,500 

Total Expenditure 635,884 244,061 879,945 716,373 265,077 981,450 

Surplus/(Deficit) 
for the Year 

54,261 (220,911) (166,650) (66,373) (243,577) (309,950) 

 

2.11 EMBC operates in a competitive market against “Approved Inspectors” who can 

also carry out fee earning building regulation work.  There is relatively strong 

competition from Approved Inspectors in the EMBC area. However, EMBC 

maintained an average market share of 49% in 2021/22 (the same as the previous 

two years).   

2.12 During 2021/2022, applications to EMBC increased on the previous two years as 

demonstrated in Table 2 and Figure 1. Since April 2022 there has been a surge in 

applications submitted. This is likely to be associated with a change in the 

Regulations that affects applications submitted after 15 June 2022; it is possible 

that the number of applications received will return to normal for the remainder of 

the year.   

 

Table 2. Yearly Comparison of EMBC Applications Received  

  April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March TOTAL  

2019/20 203 155 172 218 154 153 153 133 68 158 159 171 1897 

2020/21 83 95 161 180 146 200 187 262 131 181 181 258 2065 

2021/22 206 258 199 207 150 182 169 141 88 205 160 173 2138 

2022/23 175 192 251 136 - - - - - - - - - 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

38



 Graph 1. Comparison of Application Volumes Received since 2019/20  

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.13 Table 3 provides details of income against budget forecast compared to the 

previous years. This demonstrates a year-on-year increase in income over the last 

three years; this is linked to the increase in applications.  

Table 3.  Income Against Budget Over the Past 3 Years.  

 Total Income Budget 

2019/20 £  642,969 £  614,900 

2020/21 £  658,512 £  657,900 

2021/22 £  690,145 £  650,000 

 

Business Plan 

2.15 Whilst EMBC is not allowed to make a profit, it must act commercially to compete 

with Approved Inspectors operating in the area. Due to this commercial nature of 

the operation, it is for this reason the Abridged Business Plan is exempt. 

2.16 The Abridged Business Plan covers the following areas:  

• Background 

• Partnership management 

• Products and services 

• Market opportunities 

• Competition 

• Financial performance and forecasts 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

N
u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

39



2.17 The business plan has been updated since it was originally agreed, however a 

further full review will be undertaken once the EMBC Manager post has been filled.  

The EMBC Board will decide the content of the final business plan.  However, the 

views of the Companies Committee are sought to feed into the final plan.   

 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 The partnership is a significant success and performance remains extremely stable. 

The service provides value for money for all stakeholders.  However, it is important 

to review performance and to ensure that the service is competitive and able to 

maintain its market share.   

 

3.2 It is recommended that this report and the abridged business plan is noted with any 

recommendations to support the ongoing partnership and to feed into the final plan.  

 

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 Any additional recommendations to support the ongoing partnership are welcomed 

within the preferred option.  

 

5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 To support the ongoing success of the EMBC Partnership. 

 

6. Background Papers 
 

6.1 East Midlands Building Consultancy (EMBC) - Report to Companies Committee, 

published on 26 April 2022, available online at:  

http://moderngovsvr/documents/s34048/ENV810%20EMBC%20update%20Post%

20CMT.pdf  

 

7. Appendices 
 

7.1 Appendix A - Exempt Item: Provisional Year End Position Statement 2021/22  

 

7.2 Appendix B - Exempt Item: East Midlands Building Consultancy Draft Business 

Plan 

 

 

40

http://moderngovsvr/documents/s34048/ENV810%20EMBC%20update%20Post%20CMT.pdf
http://moderngovsvr/documents/s34048/ENV810%20EMBC%20update%20Post%20CMT.pdf


Provisional Year End Position 2021/22  

East Midlands Building Control Partnership 2021/22 

Period 01 Apr 21 to 31 Mar 22 (provisional) 

  2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 

        

  Budget 
Provisional 

Outturn 
Provisional 

Variance 

    @31 Mar 22 @31 Mar 22 

        

Fee Earning - approx 72% 74%    

Non-Fee Earning - approx 28% 26%    

        

  £ £ £ 

Fee Income (650,000) (690,145) (40,145) 

Miscellaneous Income (21,500) (23,150) (1,650) 

        

Expenditure       

Employee Expenses 759,000  676,010  (82,990) 

Premise Expenses 15,300  14,812  (488) 

Transport Expenses 38,000  32,676  (5,324) 

Supplies and Services 50,600  37,914  (12,686) 

Capital Charges 600  583  (17) 

Support Recharge Expenditure 117,950  117,950  0  

        

Total Expenditure 981,450  879,945 (101,505) 

        

Net Position 309,950  166,650 (143,300) 

        

Trading Account (Surplus)/Deficit       

SKDC 22,124  (18,087) (40,211) 

RBC 22,124  (18,087) (40,211) 

NSDC 22,124  (18,087) (40,211) 

Contributions from GF of Partners:       

SKDC 81,192  73,637  (7,555) 

RBC 81,192  73,637  (7,555) 

NSDC 81,192  73,637  (7,555) 

  309,950  166,650  (143,300) 

        

Administration fees paid to SKDC       

RBC 20,000  20,000  0  

NSDC 20,000  20,000  0  

  40,000  40,000  0  

        

 

 

 

41



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

43

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

       

Companies 
Committee 
 
 

7 October 2022 
 
Report of Cllr Adam Stokes 
(Environment SK Ltd Chairman) 
 
 

 

 

Environment SK Ltd – Finance Update including 

Financial Statements 2021/22 
 

Report Author 

Claire Moses, Director of Environment SK Ltd 

  01476 406484 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

This report presents a financial update for the Council owned company Environment SK 
Ltd and includes the 2021/22 final statements.   
 

Recommendations 

 

That the Committee: 

1. Notes the 2021/22 final accounts for Environment SK Ltd. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

69

Agenda Item 8

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

Yes - Appendix 1 is exempt under paragraph 3, 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 
(as amended) because it contains information 
relating to the financial or business affairs of an 
individual or organisation. 

 
 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities? 

Clean and sustainable environment 

 

Which wards are impacted? All 

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1  Environment SK Ltd completed their 2021/22 final accounts ahead of the statutory 

deadline of 31 December 2022 and in accordance with the terms of reference the 

financial statements are presented to the Companies Committee. 

2.2 The final accounts are appended to this report and are exempt as they contain 

information relating to the financial or businesses affairs of an individual or 

organisation. 

 

Environment SK Ltd approach 2022/23 – update 

 

2.3 At the meeting of the Committee on 25 January 2022, there were a number of 

financial matters raised in relation to the 2022/23 financial year which have been 

considered by the board of directors as a result of key risks and emerging issues. 

 

o One of the key business issues that impacted on performance in 2021/22 

was the recruitment and retention challenges associated with the national 

workforce shortage.  Environment SK Ltd reviewed a number of their 

employment and remuneration policies to address this issue for 2022/23.   

o There were also a significant number of other cost pressures outside of the 

control of the business that impacted on the contract fee the service can be 

70



delivered for.  Cost pressures included the increase in employer national 

insurance, utility price rises and significant increases in the price of vehicle 

fuel. 

o The previously approved Environment SK Ltd business plan included 

ambitious business growth objectives, including the potential to deliver 

contracts for other large public and private sector organisations.  However, 

in the short term the board of directors agreed an interim position of 

focusing on delivering SKDC core contract works and for other local public 

sector/non-profit making organisations (i.e. parish councils or schools). 

2.4 In response to the identified cost pressures that would adversely impact on the 

financial stability during 2022/23, the Council was asked to reconsider 

rescheduling the loan arrangement between the two parties.  This review led to a 

change in the loan repayment arrangements which has eased the financial 

pressures for the current financial year.  The report can be found following the link 

moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=30060&optionId

=0 

 

Current position 

2.5 In normal circumstances Environment SK Ltd would also be reviewing its business 

plan which would then be shared with Companies Committee for consideration 

(the last annual update was provided in June 2021).   

2.6 Since November 2021, the Council has undertaken a review in order to develop a 

revised, updated grounds maintenance specification.  At the time of writing this 

report there is currently uncertainty of the future of the company and Environment 

SK Ltd is awaiting instruction from South Kesteven District Council before it can 

submit a 2023/24 business plan. 

2.7 Environment SK Ltd is still experiencing inflationary cost pressures linked to fuel, 

utilities and other prices that are impacting  on the Councils’ grounds maintenance 

service although the company is confident these pressures can be accommodated 

without any recourse back to the Council. 

 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 There are no decisions required – Committee are asked to note this report.  

 

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 There are no other options to be considered – Committee are asked to note this 

report. 

 

5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1  Committee are asked to note this report. 

 

71

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=30060&optionId=0
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=30060&optionId=0


6. Consultation 
 

6.1 No consultation has taken place. 

 

 

7. Background Papers 
 

7.1 There are no background papers. 

 

8. Appendices 
 

8.1 Appendix 1: Environment SK Ltd Final Accounts – 2021/22 (EXEMPT). 

 

 

 

 

72



Document is Restricted

73

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Companies Committee: Work Programme 2022/23 

No  Item Meeting 
Date 

Lead Officer Requirements Notes  
(including reporting 
timeframes) 

1. EMBC Update 7 October 
2022 

Emma Whittaker 
Assistant Director 
of Planning 

• Review of the East Midlands 
Building Consultancy Business 
Plan 

Six Monthly update 

2. InvestSK Ltd 7 October 
2022 

InvestSK Ltd 
Board 

• Review of Business Plan 
(including the Stakeholder 
Management and 
Communication Strategy) 

 

Update 

3. LeisureSK Ltd 7 October 
2022 

LeisureSK Ltd 
Board 

• Outturn Report Update 

4. EnvironmentSK Ltd 7 October 
2022 

EnvironmentSK 
Ltd Board 

• Outturn Report  Update 

      
1. LeisureSK Ltd 16 

November 
2022 

LeisureSK Ltd 
Board 

• Accounts April 2021 – March 
2022 

Update 

 

 Items to be allocated  
 

Item  Lead Officer   

EMBC update on Business Plan within 6 months 
from 26.04.22 

Emma Whittaker -
Assistant Director 
Planning  

Date TBC every six months 
 

EnvironmentSK Ltd update  
 

 Date TBC every six months 

LeisureSK update on figures contained within the 
Business Plan – Sports Leisure Consultants to 
attend meeting to discuss figures referenced in 
Business Plan 
 

LeisureSK Ltd Board   Date TBC 

 

89

A
genda Item

 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 26 April 2022
	Companies Exempt Minutes 26.4.22

	4 Updates from the previous meeting
	5 Dissolution of InvestSK Ltd
	6 Leisure SK Ltd Accounts and Financial Year 2022-23
	Appendix - LeisureSK Accounts to end of March 2021.

	7 East Midlands Building Consultancy Update
	Appendix A - provisional outturn 2021-22
	Appendix B EXEMPT - EMBC Draft Business Plan

	8 Environment SK Ltd - Finance Update including Financial Statements 2021-22
	Appendix - ESK Ltd Final Accounts 31 March 2022

	9 Work Programme 2022 - 2023

